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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaries

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C)
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaties (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated income statement,
and the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Awditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We ate independent of the Group in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountant’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the requirements of IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the curtent year. These matters were addtessed in the

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaries

(continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Eley At MEer L

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s Insurance Contract
Liabilities and Reinsurance Contract Assets are valued at
AED 1,669.196 million and AED 1,179.802 million,
respectively. (Refer Note 12).

Valuation of (Re)Insurance contract assets and liabilities
involves significant judgements and estimates particulatly
with respect to the estimation of the present value of
future cash flows, eligibility of the premium allocation
apptoach (PAA) and estimation of the liabilities for
incurred claims.

These cash flows primatily include determination of
expected premium receipts, expected ultimate cost of
claims and allocation of insurance acquisition cash flows
which are within the contract boundaties.

The calculation for these liabilities includes significant
estimation and involvement of actuarial experts in ordet
to ensutre appropriateness of methodology, assumptions
and data used to determine the estimated future cash
flows and the appropriateness of the discount rates used
to determine the present value of these cashflows.

Valuadon of (Rejlnsurance Coniract Assets and Liahilities How our audic addressed the ke audit mareer. |
We performed the following procedures in

conjunction with our actuarial specialists:

Understanding and evaluating the process, the
design and implementation of controls in place
to determine valuation of (Re}Insurance contract
assets and liabilities;

Assessment of the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management appointed

actuary;

Tested the completeness, and on sample basis,
the accuracy and relevance of data used to
determine future cashflows;

Evaluated the appropriateness of the
methodology, significant assumptions including
risk adjustment, PAA eligibility assessment,
discount rates and expenses included within the
fulfilment cashflows. ‘This included
consideraion of the reasonableness of
assumptions against actual historical experience
and the appropdateness of any judgments
applied;

We independently reperformed the calculation
to assess the mathematical accuracy of the
(Re)Insurance contract assets and liabilities on
selected classes of business, particulatly focusing
on largest and most uncertain reserves;

Evaluated and tested the data used in the
impairment model calculatons receivables for
amounts due; and

Evaluated and tested the calculation of the
allowance for expected credit loss allowance and
the key assumptions and judgments used.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaries

(continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

4

We determined the disclosure for impact of adopting
IFRS 17 to be a key audit matter due to the significant
changes introduced by the standard, which includes
significant estimates and judgements. These impacts
will be of particular importance to the teaders of these
financial statements. (Refer to Note 2.7).

In particular, we have focused on the following key
judgements  that management have taken on
implementing IFRS 17:

- The determination of the transition approach adopted
for each group of insurance conttacts.

- The methodology adopted and key assumptions used
to determine the impact and restatement of previously
reported numbers in accordance with IFRS 17.

- Disclosure of the impact of restatement, in accordance
with IFRS 17.

i IFRS 17 How our audic addressed the key audit mateer

Our audit procedures, among others, include:

- Assessing whether the judgements applied by
management in determining their accounting
policies are in accordance with IFRS 17;

- Using our actuarial specialist team members,
evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology
used to determine discount rates as at the transition
date;

- Evaluating the appropriateness of significant
assumptions including risk adjustment, PAA
eligibility assessment, discount rates and expenses
included within the fulfilment cashflows;

- Evaluation of the completeness, and on sample
basis, the accuracy and relevance of the data used
to determine the impact of IFRS 17 adoption and
testatement; and

- Evaluated the reasonableness of the quantitative
and qualitative disclosures included in the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS 17,

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Ditectors’ Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

theteon.

Out opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and accordingly we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the othet information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements, ot our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that are obtained ptior to
the date of this auditot’s report, we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement of this other information, we
ate required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaries
(continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for The Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the
applicable provisions of the Group’s Articles of Association and of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021
and Federal Law No. (48) of 2023 (previously Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as amended) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that ate free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ertor.

In ptepating the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, ot has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance ate responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for The Audit of The Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as 2
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror, and to issue an auditor’s repott
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggrepate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exetcise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® Identify and assess the risks of matetial misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ot the override of internal
control.

¢  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concetn basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists telated to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in out auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements ot, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions ate based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditot’s report. However, futute events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern,
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaries
(continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for The Audit of The Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements reptesent the underlying
transactions and events in a2 manner that achieves fait presentation.

® Obtain sufficient approptiate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to exptess an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We ate responsible for the direction, supetvision and petformance of the group audit. We temain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify duting our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and whete applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the cuttent year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We desctibe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or tegulation
precludes public disclosute about the matter or when, in extremely rate circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
teasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, we tepott that:

i) the Group has maintained proper books of account;

i)  we have obtained all the information we considered necessaty for the purposes of our audit;

iy  the consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all matetial respects, with
the applicable provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company and the UAE Federal Law

No. (32) of 2021;

iv)  investments in shares and stocks during the year ended 31 December 2023, are disclosed in note 10
to these consolidated financial statements;

v)  notes 20 and 21 reflect material related party transactions and the terms under which they were
conducted;

vi)  note 6 to the consolidated financial statements reflects the social contributions made duting the year;
and

vil)  based on the information that has been made available to us nothing has come to out attention which
causes us to believe that the Group has contravened during the financial year ended
31 December 2023 any of the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021 ot its
Articles of Association which would have a material impact on its activities or its consolidated
financial position.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaries
(continued)

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

Further, as requited by the UAE Federal Law No. (48) of 2023 (pteviously Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as
amended), we report that we have obtained all the information and explanation we considered necessary
for the puxpose of our audit.

o
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Registration No. 935

Dubai, United Arab Emirates
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Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaries

Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses

Insurance service result before reinsurance contracts
held

Allocation of reinsurance premiums
Amounts recoverable from reinsurance for incurred claims

Net expenses from reinsurance contracts held
Insurance service result

Investment income

Insurance finance (expense)/incotme for insurance contracts
issued

Reinsurance finance income/ (expense) for reinsurance
contracts held
Net insurance financial result

Net insurance and investment results
Other operating expenses

Profit for the year
Basic and diluted earnings per share (AED)

The attached accompanying notes 1 to 24 form patt of these consolidated financial statements.

Notes

Restated

2023 2022
AED000 AED’000
2,149,804 1,195,301
(1,332,071) (731,489)
817,733 463,812
(1,295,772) (809,968)
601,108 421,683
(694,664) (388,285)
123,069 75,527
39,165 27253
(10,906) 6,819
10,135 (6,341)
(771) 478
161,463 103,258
(19,573) (13,218)
141,890 90,040
1.374 0.848
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Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaries

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss:

Net change in fair value of equity investments designated at
EFVTOCI

Gain on disposal of equity investments designated at

FVTOCI

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

The attached accompanying notes 1 to 24 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

Restated

2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
141,890 90,040
55,461 6,207
3,602 481
59,063 6,688
200,953 96,728
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Dubai Insutance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaries

Consolidated statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2023

Restated Restazed
2023 2022 2021
Notes AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Assets
Property and equipment 8 51,948 48,898 49,015
Investment property 9 63,528 64,273 65,016
Financial assets 10 911,902 705,640 566,415
Reinsurance contract assets 12 1,179,802 883,948 750,395
Statutory deposit 14 10,000 10,000 10,000
Prepayments and other receivables 13 54,743 29,954 28422
Cash and cash equivalents 15 558,149 311,725 178,066
Total assets 2,830,072 2,054,438 1,647,329
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 16 100,000 100,000 100,000
Statutory reserve 17 50,000 50,000 50,000
General reserve 17 50,000 50,000 50,000
Reinsurance resetrve 17 23,601 13,812 8,596
Cumulative changes in fair value of FVTOCI
investments 17 251,429 225,062 218,855
Retained earnings 315,535 205,250 165,155
Total equity 790,565 644,124 592,606
Liabilities
Bank loan - - 11,039
Employees’ end of service benefits 19 6,958 5,809 5,537
Insurance contract liabilities 12 1,669,196 1,213,266 985,227
Other payables 363,353 191,239 52,920
Total liabilities 2,039,507 1,410,314 1,054,723
Total equity and liabilities 2,830,072 2,054,438 1,647,329

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on 20 Februatry 2024,

= N L B

Buti Obaid Almulla MarwanAdsAulla Al Rostamani
Chairman Vice Chairman

The attached accompanying notes 1 to 24 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaries

Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment
Depreciation on investment propetty

Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity
Realised loss on disposal of financial asset at fair value
through profit and loss on equity instruments

Change in fair value of financial assets at FVIPL
Interest income

Dividend income
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital

Changes in working capital:

Reinsurance contract assets

Insurance contract liabilities

Prepayment and other receivables

Other payables

Net cash generated from operations
Employees’ end of service indemnity paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of investments held at amortised cost
Net of Purchase and proceeds of financial assets at
FVTOCI

Investments in bank deposits at amortised cost

Interest received
Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Net repayment of bank loan

Dividends paid

Directors’ fees paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The attached accompanying notes 1 to 24 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

Notes

o

19

18
21

Restated

2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
141,890 90,040
3,263 2,037
743 743
1,334 927
845 3

20 117
(16,856) (5,782)
(24,212) (22,103)
107,027 65,982
(295,854) (133,553)
455,932 228,040
(24,789) (1,453)
172,114 138,319
414,430 297,335
(185) (655)
414,245 296,680
(6,313) (1,920)
(16,081) 9,124
(3,819) (34,874)
(128,164) (107,985)
16,856 5,782
24,212 22,103
(113,309) (106,770)
- (11,039)
(50,000) (40,000)
(4,512) (5,212)
(54,512) (56,251)
246,424 133,659
311,725 178,066
558,149 311,725
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Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) (the “Company”) is a public shateholding Company registered under
the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021 and the U.A.E. Federal Law No. (48) of 2023 (previously Federal
Law No. 6 of 2007, as amended) relating to commetcial companies in the UAE. The Company mainly
issues short term insurance contracts in connection with worker protecton fund, motor, marine, fire,
engineering and general accident (collectively known as general insutance) and group life and medical risks
(collectively referred to as medical and life insurance). The Company also invests its funds in investment
securities and properties. The registered address of the Company is P.O. Box 3027, Dubai, United Arab
Emirates. The Company operates in the United Arab Emirates and most of the insurance policies are issued
in the United Arab Emirates. The shates of the Company ate listed on the Dubai Financial Market.

During the year, Federal Law No. 48 of 2023 has been issued with effective date of 30 November 2023,
repealing Federal Law No. 6 of 2007. In accordance with Article 112 of the Federal Law No. 48 of 2023,
the Company has 6 months from this date to apply the provisions of the new Law. The Company is in the
process of reviewing the new provisions and will apply the requirements thereof in the required time.

The Company established a new subsidiaties for communication and consultation putposes. These
consolidated financial statements incorpotate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”).

On 9 December 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance released Federal Decree-Law No. 47 of 2022 on the
Taxation of Corporations and Businesses (Corporate Tax Law ot the Law) to enact a Federal corporate tax
regime in the UAE. The Law was published in the official gazette on 10 October 2022 and became effective
on 25 October 2022, The Corporate Tax law will apply to taxable persons for financial years beginning on
or after 1 June 2023. For the Company, Corporate Tax will apply from 1 January 2024. A rate of 9% will
apply to taxable income exceeding AED 375,000. A rate of 0% will apply to taxable income not exceeding
this threshold. The Company engaged a consultant to assist with assessing the impact of Corporate Tax.
This engagement is substantially completed and will enable the Company to start accounting for Corporate
Tax from Q1 2024.

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
21 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) promulgated by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and
interpretations thereof issued by the Intetnational Financial Repozting Interpretation Committee and in
compliance with the applicable requirements of U.A.E Federal Law No. (32) of 2021(“Companies Law™),
relating to commercial companies and United Arab Emirates (UAE) Federal Law No. (48) of 2023
(previously Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as amended) concerning Financial Regulations for Insurance
Companies issued by the Central Bank of the UAE (“CBUAE”) and regulation of its opetations. These
consolidated financial statements are prepared in UAE Dithams (“AED”).

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The Group comprises of the Company and the under-mentioned subsidiaries company.

Subsidiaries Principal activity Country of incorporation  Ownership

Insurance Pool For

Communication And I(_:Iumﬁ Resources United Arab Emirates 100%
Consulting Services L.L.C onsuitancy

ILOE Call Services L.L.C Call Centre Services United Arab Emirates 100%
DIN Care Services L.L.C Customer Care Centre United Arab Emirates 100%
DIN Nevus Management Management Consulting United Arab Emirates 100%

Consultancies L.L.C

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaties
as at 31 December 2023,

12



Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaties

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Controlis achieved when the Group is exposed, ot has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the

Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

® power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee);
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

® the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majotity of voting rights result in control. To suppott this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting o similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

® the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

® rights arising from other contractual arrangements

® the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiaties, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiaries, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, non-controlling interest and other components of equity while any resultant gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

2.3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for the
measurement at fair value of financial assets catried at fair value.

The Group presents its consolidated statement of financial position broadly in otder of liquidity, with a
distinction based on expectations regarding recovety ot settlement within twelve months after the reporting
date (current) and more than twelve months after the reporting date (non-current), presented in the notes.

24  STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS EFFECTIVE
FROM 1JANUARY 2023

The following televant standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards were issued by the
IASB:

Standard
number Title Effective date
IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments to IAS 1 and 1 January 2023

IFRS Practice Statement 2
JAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to IAS 8 1 January 2023

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities atising from a
single transaction — Amendments to IAS 12

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 Januaty 2023

IAS 12 1 January 2023

These standards have been adopted by the Company and did not have a material impact on these financial
statements, except for the adoption of “IFRS 17 Insutance contracts”.

2.5 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The impact of the new standards, interpretations and amendments that ate issued, but not yet effective, up
to the date of issuance of the Group’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt
these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.
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Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

2.6 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (*“IFRS”)

Standard

number Title Effective date
IAS1 Amendment to TAS 1 — Non-current liabilities with covenants 1 January 2024
IFRS 16 Amendment to IFRS 16 — Leases on sale and leaseback 1 January 2024

2.7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
set out below:

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Changes to classification and measurement

The adoption of IFRS 17 did not change the classification of the Group’s insurance contracts. The Group
was previously permitted under IFRS 4 to continue accounting using its previous accounting policies.
However, IFRS 17 establishes specific principles for the recognition and measurement of insurance
contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held by the Group.

Under IFRS 17, the Group’s insurance contracts issued, and reinsurance contracts held are all eligible to be
measured by applying the premium allocation approach (PAA). The PAA simplifies the measurement of
insurance contracts in comparison with the general model in IFRS 17.

The Group applies the PAA to simplify the measurement of all of its insurance and reinsurance contracts.
When measuting liabilities for remaining coverage, the PAA is similar to the Group’s previous accounting
treatment. However, when measuring liabilities for outstanding claims, the Group now discounts the future
cash flows and includes an explicit risk adjustment for non-financial disk.

Previously, all acquisition costs were recognised and presented as separate assets from the related insurance
contracts (‘deferred acquisition costs’) until those costs wete included in profit or loss and OCL

Under IFRS 17, only insurance acquisition cash flows that atise before the recognition of the related
insurance contracts are recognised as separate assets and ate tested for recoverability. These assets are
presented in the carrying amount of the related portfolio of contracts and are detecognised once the related
contracts have been recognised.

Income and expenses from reinsurance contracts other than insurance finance income and expenses are
now presented as a single net amount in profit or loss. Previously, amounts recovered from reinsuters and
reinsurance expenses wete presented sepatately.

The measurement principles of the PAA differ from the ‘earned premium approach’ used by the Group
under IFRS 4 in the following key atreas:

*  The liability for remaining coverage reflects premiums received less deferred acquisition expenses less
amounts recognised in revenue for insurance services provided;

*  Measurement of the liability for remaining coverage includes an adjustment for the time value of
money and the effect of financial risk where the premium due date and the related petiod of coverage
are more than 12 months apatt;

*  Measurement of the liability for remaining coverage involves an explicit evaluation of risk adjustment
fot non-financial risk when a group of contracts is onerous in order to calculate a loss component
(previously these may have formed part of the unexpired tisk reserve provision); and

*  Measurement of the liability for incurred claims (previously claims outstanding and incutred-but-not-
reported (IBNR)) is determined on a discounted probability-weighted expected value basis and
includes an explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk.

14
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
2.7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Changes to classification and measurement (continued)

The Group capitalises its insurance acquisition cash flows.. No separate asset is recognised for deferred
acquisition costs. Instead, qualifying insurance acquisition cash flows are subsumed into the insurance
liability for temaining coverage.

Changes to presentation and disclosure

For presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position, the Group aggregates insurance and
reinsurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held, respectively and presents separately:

*  Groups of insurance and teinsurance contracts issued that are assets;

*  Groups of insurance and reinsurance contracts issued that ate liabilities;
*  Groups of reinsurance contracts held that are assets; and

*  Groups of reinsurance contracts held that are liabilities.

The groups referred to above are those established at initial recognition in accordance with the IFRS 17
requirements.

The line-item descriptions in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income have been changed significantly compared with last year. Previously, the Group
reported the following line items:

*  Gross written premiums;

*  Net written premiums;

*  Changes in premium resetves;
*  Gross insutance claims; and

*  Net insurance claims.

Instead, IFRS 17 requires separate presentation of;

. Insurance revenue;

*  Insurance service expenses;

*  Insurance finance income ot expenses; and

*  Income or expenses from reinsurance contracts held.

The Group provides disaggtegated qualitative and quantitative information about;:

*  Amounts recognised in its consolidated financial statements from insurance contracts
*  Significant judgements, and changes in those judgements, when applying the standard

Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 17 have been applied using a full
retrospective apptoach to the extent practicable. Under the full retrospective apptoach, at 1 January 2022
the Group:

- identified, recognised and measured each group of insurance and reinsurance contracts as if
IFRS 17 had always been applied,;

- identified, recognised and measuted any assets for insurance acquisition cash flows as if IFRS 17
had always been applied;

- detecognised previously reported balances that would not have existed if IFRS 17 had always been
applied. These included some deferred acquisition costs for insurance contracts, intangible assets
related to insurance contracts (previously referred to as ‘value of business acquired’), insurance
receivables and payables, and provisions for levies that are attributable to existing insurance
contracts. Under IFRS 17, they ate included in the measutement of the insurance contracts; and

- recognised any resulting net difference in equity.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
2.7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Transition (continued)

The Group has applied the transition provisions in IFRS 17 and has disclosed the impact of the adoption
of IFRS 17 on each consolidated financial statement line item. The effects of adopting IFRS 17 on the
consolidated financial statements at 1 January 2022 are presented in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

The table below summarise the impact of initial application of IFRS 17 as at 1 January 2022:

As Effect of
previously  application
reported of IFRS 17 Restated
AED000 AED000 AED’000
ASSETS
Reinsurance contract asset 943,982 194 750,395
Insurance and Reinsurance receivables 267,332 267 -
LIABILITIES
Insurance contract liabilities 1,060,013 75 085,227
Insurance and reinsurance payables 348,247 348,247 -
Other payables 52,920 - 52,920
EQUITY
Retained earnings 203,041 38 165,155

Insurance and reinsurance contracts classification

The Group issues insurance conttacts in the normal course of business, under which it accepts significant
insurance risk from its policyholders. As a general guideline, the Group determines whether it has significant
insurance tisk, by compating benefits payable after an insured event with benefits payable if the insured
event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.

Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting treatment
Separating components from insurance and reinsurance contracts

The Group assesses its insurance and reinsurance products to determine whether they contain distinct
components which must be accounted for under another IFRS instead of under IFRS 17. After separating
any distinct components, the Group applies IFRS 17 to all remaining components of the (host) insurance
contract. Currently, the Group’s products do not include any distinct components that require sepatation.

Some reinsurance contracts issued contain profit commission arrangements. Under these arranpgements,
there is a minimum guaranteed amount that the policyholder will always receive — either in the form of
profit commission, or as claims, or another contractual payment irrespective of the insured event
happening. The minimum guaranteed amounts have been assessed to be highly interrelated with the
insurance component of the reinsurance contracts and are, therefore, non-distinct investment components
which are not accounted for separately. However, receipts and payments of these investment components
are recognised outside of profit or loss.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
2.7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting treatment (continued)
Level of aggregation

IFRS 17 requires a Group to determine the level of aggregation for applying its requirements. The Group
previously applied aggregation levels under IFRS 4, which were significantly higher than the level of
aggregation required by IFRS 17. The level of aggregation for the Group is determined firstly by dividing
the business written into portfolios. Portfolios comprise groups of contracts with similar tisks which are
managed together. Portfolios are further divided based on expected profitability at inception into thtee
categories: onerous conttacts, contracts with no significant risk of becoming onerous, and the remainder.
This means that, for determining the level of aggregation, the Group identifies a contract as the smallest
‘unit’, i.e., the lowest common denominator. However, the Group makes an evaluation of whether a series
of contracts need to be treated together as one unit based on reasonable and supportable information, or
whether a single contract contains components that need to be separated and treated as if they were stand-
alone contracts. As such, what is treated as a contract for accounting purposes may differ from what is
considered as a contract for other purposes (i.e., legal or management). IFRS 17 also notes that no group
for level of aggregation purposes may contain contracts issued more than one year apatt.

The Group has elected to group together those contracts that would fall into different groups only because
law, regulation or internal policies specifically constrains its practical ability to set a different price or level
of benefits for policyholders with different characteristics. The Group applied a full retrospective approach
for transition to IFRS 17. The portfolios are further divided into groups of contracts by quarter of issue
and profitability for recognition and measurement purposes. Hence, within each quarter of issue, pottfolios
of contracts are divided into three groups, as follows:

* A group of contracts that are onerous at initial recognition (if any)

* A group of contracts that, at initial recognition, have no significant possibility of becoming onerous
subsequently (if any)

* A group of the remaining contracts in the portfolio (if any)

The profitability of groups of contracts is assessed by profitability committee that take into consideration
existing and new business. The Group assumes that no contracts in the portfolio are onerous at initial
recognition unless facts and circumstances indicate otherwise. For contracts that are not onetous, the
Group assesses, at initial recognition, that there is no significant possibility of becoming onerous
subsequently by assessing the likelihood of changes in applicable facts and circumstances.

Below are some of the relevant facts and citcumstances that the Group considets:

*  Evaluation of expected combines ratios;

*  Pricing information;

*  Results of similar contracts it has recognised; and

*  Environment factors, e.g., a change in market experience or tegulations.

The Group divides portfolios of reinsurance contracts held applying the same principles set out above,
except that the references to onerous contracts refer to contracts on which there is a net gain on initial
recognition. For some groups of reinsurance contracts held, a group can comprise a single contract.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
2.7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting treatment (continued)

Recognition

The Group recognises groups of insurance contracts it issues from the earliest of the following:

*  The beginning of the coverage petiod of the gtoup of contracts;

*  The date when the first payment from a policyholder in the group is due or when the first payment is
received if there is no due date;

*  For a group of onerous contracts, if facts and citcumstances indicate that the gtoup is onerous the
Group recognises a group of reinsurance contracts held;

* If the reinsurance contracts provide proportionate coverage at the later of the beginning of the
coverage period of the group, or the initial recognition of any undetlying contract; and

* In all other cases, from the beginning of the coverage period of the group the Group adds new
contracts to the group when they are issued or initiated.

Contract boundary

The Group includes in the measurement of a group of insurance contracts all the future cash flows within
the boundary of each contract in the group. Cash flows are within the boundary of an insurance contract if
they arise from substantive tights and obligations that exist during the reporting petiod in which the Group
can compel the policyholder to pay the premiums, or in which the Group has a substantive obligation to
provide the policyholder with services. A substantive obligation to provide services ends when:

¢ The Group has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the particular policyholder and, as a result,
can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects those risks; or

Both of the following criteria are satisfied:

*  The Group has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the portfolio of insurance contracts that
contain the contract and, as a result, can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects the isk of
that portfolio; and

*  The pricing of the premiums for coverage up to the date when the risks are reassessed does not take
into account the risks that relate to periods after the reassessment date.

A liability or asset relating to expected premiums or claims outside the boundary of the insurance contract
is not recognised. Such amounts relate to future insurance contracts.
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2 MATERIAL. ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
2.7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting treatment (continued)
Measurement - Premium Allocation Approach

Insurance contracts — initial measurement

The Group applies the premium allocation approach (PAA) to all the insurance contracts that it issues
and reinsurance contracts that it holds, as:

*  The coverage period of each contract in the group is one year ot less, including coverage atising from
all premiums within the contract boundary.

Or

*  For contracts longer than one year, the Group has modelled possible future scenarios and reasonably
expects that the measurement of the liability for remaining coverage for the group containing those
contracts under the PAA does not differ matetially from the measutement that would be produced
applying the general model. In assessing materiality, the Group has also considered qualitative factors
such as the nature of the risk and types of its lines of business.

The Group does not apply the PAA if, at the inception of the group of contracts, it expects significant
variability in the fulfilment cash flows that would affect the measurement of the liability for the remaining
coverage during the petiod before a claim is incurred. Variability in the fulfilment cash flows increases with:

*  The extent of future cash flows related to any derivatives embedded in the contracts.
*  The length of the coverage period of the group of contracts.

For a group of contracts that is not onerous at initial recognition, the Group measures the liability for
temaining coverage as the premiums, if any, received at initial recognition, minus any insurance acquisition
cash flows at that date, with the exception of contracts which are one year or less where this is expensed,
plus or minus any amount atising from the derecognition at that date of the asset or liability recognised for
insurance acquisition cash flows that the Group pays ot receives before the group of insurance contracts is
recognised. There is no allowance for time value of money as the premiums are mostly received within one
year of the coverage period.

The Group measures its reinsurance assets for a group of reinsurance contracts that it holds on the same
basis as insurance contracts that it issues, however, adapted to reflect the features of reinsurance contracts
held that differ from insurance contracts issued, for example the generation of expenses or reduction in
expenses rather than revenue.

Insurance contracts — subsequent measurement

The Group measures the carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage at the end of each reporting
period as the liability for remaining coverage at the beginning of the petiod:

*  Plus premiums received in the petiod;

*  Minus capitalised insurance acquisition cash flows;

*  Plus any amounts relating to the amortisation of the acquisition cash flows recognised as an expense
in the reporting period for the group;

*  Plus any adjustment to the financing component, whete applicable;

*  Minus the amount recognised as insurance revenue for the coverage period; and

* Minus any investment component paid or transferred to the liability for incutred claims.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
2.7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting treatment (continued)
Measurement - Premium Allocation Approach (continued)

Insurance contracts — subsequent measurement (continued)

‘The Group estimates the liability for incutred claims as the fulfilment cash flows related to incurred claims.
The fulfilment cash flows incorporate, in an unbiased way, all reasonable and supportable information
available without undue cost or effort about the amount, timing and uncertainty of those future cash flows,
they reflect current estimates from the perspective of the entity, and include an explicit adjustment for non-
financial risk (the risk adjustment). The Group does not adjust the future cash flows for the time value of
money and the effect of financial tisk for the measurement of liability for incutred claims that are expected
to be paid within one year of being incurred.

Insurance acquisition cash flows ate allocated on a straight-line basis to profit ot loss.
Reinsurance contracts

The subsequent measurement of reinsurance contracts held follows the same principles as those for
insurance contracts issued and has been adapted to reflect the specific features of reinsurance held.

Insurance contracts — modification and derecognition
The Group derecognises insurance contracts when:

* The rights and obligations relating to the contract are extinguished (i.e., dischatged, cancelled or
expired);

Or

* The contract is modified such that the modification tesults in a change in the measutement model or
the applicable standard for measuring a component of the contract, substantially changes the contract
boundaty, or requires the modified contract to be included in a different group. In such cases, the
Group derecognises the initial contract and recognises the modified contract as 2 new contract.

When a modification is not treated as a derecognition, the Group recognises amounts paid or received for
the modification with the contract as an adjustment to the relevant liability for remaining coverage.

Presentation

The Group has presented separately, in the consolidated statement of financial position, the catrying
amount of groups of insurance contracts issued that are assets, groups of insurance contracts issued that
are liabilities, reinsurance contracts held that are assets and groups of reinsurance contracts held that are
liabilides.

Any assets or liabilities for insurance acquisition cash flows tecognised before the cotresponding insurance
contracts are included in the carrying amount of the related groups of insurance contracts issued,

The Group disaggregates the total amount recognised in the consolidated statement of profit ot loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income into an insurance setvice result, comprising insurance revenue
and insurance service expense, and insurance finance income or expenses.

The Group disaggregate the change in tisk adjustment for non-financial risk between a financial and non-
financial portion which will be presented in insurance finance income or expenses and in insurance service
result respectively.

The Group separately presents income or expenses from reinsurance contracts held from the expenses or
income from insurance contracts issued.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
2.7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting treatment (continued)
Insurance revenue

The insurance revenue for the period is the amount of expected premium receipts (excluding any
investment component) allocated to the period. The Group allocates the expected premium teceipts to
each period of coverage on the basis of the passage of time; but if the expected pattern of release of risk
during the coverage period differs significantly from the passage of time, then on the basis of the expected
timing of incutred insurance setvice expenses.

The Group changes the basis of allocation between the two methods above as necessary, if facts and
circumstances change. The change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

For the periods presented, all revenue has been recognised on the basis of the passage of time.
Loss components

The Group assumes that no contracts are onerous at initial recognition unless facts and circumstances
indicate otherwise. If at any time during the coverage petiod, the facts and citcumstances indicate that a
group of insurance contracts is onerous, the Group establishes a loss component as the excess of the
fulfilment cash flows that relate to the remaining coverage of the group over the carrying amount of the
liability for remaining coverage of the group. Accordingly, by the end of the coverage petiod of the group
of contracts the loss component will be zero.

Insurance finance income and expense

Insurance finance income or expenses comprise the change in the carrying amount of the group of
insurance contracts arising from:

5 The effect of the time value of money and changes in the time value of money; and
& The effect of financial risk and changes in financial risk.

The Group disaggregates insurance finance income or expenses between profit or loss and OCI. The impact
of changes in market interest rates on the value of the insurance assets and liabilities are reflected in OCI
in order to minimise accounting mismatches between the accounting for financial assets and insurance
assets and liabilities. The Group’s financial assets are also measured at FVTOCL

Net income or expense from reinsurance contracts held

The Group presents separately on the face of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the amounts expected to be tecovered from reinsurers, and an allocation of the reinsurance
premiums paid. The Group treats reinsurance cash flows that are contingent on claims on the underlying
contracts as part of the claims that are expected to be reimbursed under the reinsurance contract held, and
excludes investment components and commissions from an allocation of reinsurance premiums presented
on the face of the income statement and othet comprehensive income.

Classification of insurance contracts

Insurance contracts issued by the Company are classified into two main categories, depending on the
duration of risk being: shott-term insurance contracts and long-term insurance contracts.

Shori-term Insurance contracts

These contracts are medical, motor, propetty, casualty, matine, engineeting and shott-duration life
insurance contracts.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
2.7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Classification of insurance contracts (continued)
Short-term insurance contracts (continued)

Medical insurance contracts protect the Company’s customets against the risk of incurting medical
expenses. Medical selection is part of the Company’s underwriting procedures, whereby conttibutions are
chatged to reflect the health condition and family medical histoty of the applicants. Pricing is based on
assumptions, such as persistency, which consider past expetience and current trends. Contracts including
specific risks and guarantees are tested for profitability according to predefined procedures before approval.

Marine insurance covets the loss or damage of ships, cargo, terminals, and any transport by which the
property is transferred, acquired, or held between the points of otigin and the final destination.

Engineering Insurance is an insutance policy that covets a wide range of engineering related risks. It is a
comprehensive insurance that provides complete protection against risks associated with erection, resting,
and working of any machinety, plant or equipment.

Motor insurance comprises Comprehensive Insurance and Third-Party Insurance. Comprehensive
Insurance covers the policy holder for any loss or damage to the policy holder’s vehicle caused either by
themselves or a third party. It also covers any third party for loss or damage caused by the policy holder.
Third Party Insurance, on the other hand only covers the third party for any loss of damage caused by the
policy holder.

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company’s customets for damage suffered to their
properties or for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake commercial activities on their
premises could also receive compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use the insured
properties in their business activities (business interruption cover).

Casualty insurance contracts protect the Company’s customers against the tisk of causing hatm to third
parties as a result of their legitimate activities. Damages covered include both contractual and non-
contractual events.

Short-duration life insurance contracts (credit life) protect the Company’s customers from the
consequences of events that would affect the ability of the customer or customer’s dependents to maintain
their current level of income. Guaranteed benefits paid on occutrence of the specified insurance event are
either fixed or linked to the extent of the economic loss suffered by the policyholdet. Thete is no maturity
or surrender benefits.

Products ate reviewed by the business units on an annual basis to confirm, or otherwise, that pricing
assumptions remain appropriate. Analysis is performed on earnings and liability movements to undetrstand
the soutce of any material variation in actual results from what was expected. This confitms the
approptiateness of assumptions used in underwriting and pricing,

Long-term insurance contracts

The Company has not written any long-term products during the year ended 31 December 2023 (31
December 2022: nil). Currently, the Company has no intention to grow this line. The existing pottfolio will
expire with the passage of time. This postfolio include writes single premium savings plan (Everest Product)
which is a hybrid between Universal Life and traditional Endowment plans for periods of 3, 5 or 7 years.
The plan offers guaranteed maturity benefit and death benefit as higher of policy value or single premium
paid. Policy value is calculated as the sum of general and sepatate account values as at the date of valuation.

The general account value is invested in fixed deposits. The value of deposit as at the valuation date is taken
to be general account value.

Separate account is invested in international equities by the reinsurer who carries the investment risk,
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
2.7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expenses for all interest-beating financial instruments is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross cartying amount of the financial instrument, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (ot stage 3), for which interest income is calculated by
applying the effective intetest rate to their amortised cost (i.e. net of the expected credit loss provision) and
are recognised within ‘interest income’ in the statement of profit or loss.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Company’s rights to receive payment have been
established.

Rental income

Rental income from investment properties which are leased under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Commissions earned

Commissions earned are recognised at the time policies are written.

Investment income

@ Interest income is tecognised on a time propottion basis.

(i) Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive payment is established.
(iii) Rental income is recognised as income over the period to which it relates.

Claims and expenses recognition
Claims, comprising amounts payable to contract holdets and third parties and related loss adjustment
expenses, net of salvage and other recoveries, are charged to income as incurred.

The Group generally estimates its claims based on ptevious experience. Independent loss adjustets normally
estimate property claims. Any difference between the provisions at the reporting date and settlements and
provisions for the following year is included in the underwriting account for that year.

Finance cost

Interest paid is recognised in the consolidated statement of income as it accrues and is calculated by using
the effective interest rate method. Accrued interest is included within the carrying value of the interest
bearing financial liability.

Policy acquisition costs

Commissions and other costs ditectly related to the acquisition and renewal of insurance contracts are
chatged to the consolidated statement of income when incurred.

General and administration expenses

Direct expenses of general insurance business are charged to respective departmental revenue accounts.
Indirect expenses of the general insurance business are allocated to departmental revenue accounts on the
basis of gross retained premiums of each department. Other administration expenses are charged to the
consolidated statement of income.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
2.7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency translation

The presentation curtency is UAE Dirhams (AED). This is also the functional currency of the Group.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate ruling at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the
initial transaction and are not subsequently restated. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
cutrency ate translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. All foreign
exchange differences ate taken to the consolidated statement of income, except when it relates to items
when gains or losses ate recognised directly in equity, the gain or loss is then recognised net of the exchange
component in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Segment reporting

Fot management purposes, the Group is otganised into business units based on their products and services
and has three reportable operating segments as follows:

a)  The medical and life insurance segment offers short term group health and life insurance. Revenue
from this segment is derived primatily from insurance premium, fees and commission income.

b)  The general insurance segment comprises insurance to individuals and businesses. General insurance
products offeted include motor, marine, fite, engineering, general accident and miscellaneous. These
products offer protection of policyholder’s assets and indemnification of other parties that have
suffered damage as a result of policyholdet’s accident, e.g., employee liability claims and asbestos.
Revenue in this segment is derived primarily from insurance premiums.

©)  The investment segment includes investment in equity, fixed income securities such as bonds and
fixed deposits and net rental income from investment properties. Income from this segment is
primarily from investment income and fair value gains and losses on investments.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments. Segment
petformance is evaluated based on profit or loss which, in certain respects, is measured differently from
profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements. Unallocated administrative expenses are managed on
a group basis and are not allocated to individual operating segments.

No intet-segment transactions occurred in 2023 and 2022. If any transaction were to occur, transfer prices
between operating segments would be set on an arm’s length basis in 2 manner similar to transactions with
third parties. Segment income, expenses and results will include those transfers between business segments
which will then be eliminated on consolidation.

Product classification

Insurance contracts ate those contracts when the Group (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance
tisk from another party (the policyholders) by agteeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified
uncertain future event (the insured event) advetsely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the
Group determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing benefits paid with benefits
payable if the insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer significant financial risk. Financial risk is the risk of

a possible future change in one or more of a specified interest rate, security ptice, commodity price, foreign
exchange rate, index of price or rates, a credit rating or credit index or other variable.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the
remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance tisk reduces significantly during this petiod, unless all rights
and obligations are extinguished or expire. Investment contracts can however be reclassified as insurance
contracts after inception, if insurance risk becomes significant.

The Group does not have any investment contracts or any insurance contracts with Discretionary
Participation Features (DPF).
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
2.7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property and equipment

Propetty and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of property and equipment
as follows:

Furniture and equipment 4 —10 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

No depreciation is charged on land.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the catrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and
where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their
recoverable amount, being the higher of their value less costs to sell and their value in use.

An item of property and equipment is detecognised upon disposal or when no futute economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognised.

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment that is accounted for
separately is capitalised and the catrying amount of the component that is replaced is written off. Other
subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases future economic benefits of the related item of
property and equipment. All other expenditure is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as the expense is incutred.

Investment properties

The Group has elected to adopt the cost model for investment properties. Accordingly, investment
properties are carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Building 40 years
No depteciation is charged on freehold land.
Fait value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, equity insttuments, and non-financial assets such as
investment properties (for disclosure purposes), at fair value at each balance sheet date. Also, fair values of
financial instraments measured at amortised cost are disclosed in note 11.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an otderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the citcumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measute fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
2.7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fait value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described in note 11, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in these consolidated financial statements on a recurting basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.

Financial instruments
Recognition and nieasnrensent

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities ate initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount is tepotted in the financial statements only
when thete is legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amount and the Group intends either to settle
on a net basis or realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expense will not be
offset in the consolidated statement of income unless requited or petmitted by any accounting standard or
interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Group.

Financial assets

All financial assets are tecognised and derecognised on trade date when the purchase or sale of a financial
asset is undet a contract whose tetms tequire delivety of the financial asset within the timeframe established
by the market concerned. Financial assets are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs. All
recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value.

Classification and initial mieasurenient of financial assets

For the purposes of classifying financial assets, an instrument is an ‘equity instrument” if it is 2 non-derivative
and meets the definition of ‘equity” for the issuer (under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation) except
for certain non-derivative puttable instruments presented as equity by the issuer. All other non-detivative
financial assets are ‘debt instruments’.

Financial assets at amoriised cost and the effective interest method

Debt insttuments are measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

® theassetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that ate solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The Group may irrevocably elect at
initial recognition to classify a debt instrument that meets the amortised cost criteda above as at FVTPL if
that designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch had the financial asset been
measured at amottised cost,

Caslh and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, which include cash on hand and current accounts with banks, are classified as
financial assets at amortised cost.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
2.7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Tusurance and other receivables, deposits and statutory deposits

Insurance and other receivables (excluding prepayments), deposits and statutory deposits are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Financial assets at fair value through other coniprehensive income (F17TOCI)

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis)
to designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if
the equity investment is held for trading. The Group accounts for financial assets at FVOCI if the assets
meet the following conditions:

® they are held under a business model whose objective it is “hold to collect” the associated cash
flows and sell, and

® the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Any gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) will be recycled upon derecognition
of the asset.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are recognised in incorme statement when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends cleatly teptesent a recovery of
patt of the cost of the investment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (F17TPL)

Financial assets that are held within a different business model other than ‘hold to collect’ ot *hold to collect
and sell’ are categorised at FVIPL. Furthet, irtespective of business model financial assets whose
contractual cash flows ate not solely payments of principal and interest are accounted for at FVTPL.

The fair value is determined in line with the requirements of IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments’, which does
not allow for measurement at cost. Fair value is determined in the manner desctibed in note 12. Assets in
this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The fait values of
financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market transactions or using a
valuation technique where no active market exists.

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9’s impairment requirements use forward looking information under Expected credit loss (ECL)
model for the financial assets measured at amortised cost which consist of insurance and other receivables
(excluding ptepayments), cash and cash equivalents, investments at amortised cost and due from related
parties.

Measnrement of ECLs

The Group considers a broader range of information when assessing credit risk and measuring expected
credit losses, including past events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the
expected collectability of the future cash flows of the instrument. In applying this forward-looking
approach, a distinction is made between:

® financial instruments that have not detetiorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition or
that have low credit tisk (“Stage 17); and

® financial insttuments that have deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition and
whose credit risk is not low (‘Stage 2°).
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

2.7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Measnrement of ECLs (continned)

‘Stage 3’ would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. The
Group considers a debt security to have low credit risk when their credit risk rating is equivalent to the
globally understood definition of “investment grade”.

‘12-month expected credit losses” are recognised for the first category (i.e. Stage 1) while ‘lifetime expected
credit losses’ are recognised for the second category (i.e. Stage 2). Measurement of the expected credit losses
is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the financial
instrument.

Tnsurance and other recetvables

The Group makes use of a simplified approach in accounting for insurance and other and recotds the loss
allowance as lifetime expected credit losses. These are the expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows,
considering the potential for default at any point duting the life of the financial instrument. In calculating,
the Group uses its historical experience, external indicatots and forward-looking information to calculate
the expected credit losses using a provision matrix.

The Group assess impairment of insurance receivables on a collective basis as they possess shared credit
tisk charactetistics, they have been grouped based on the days past due. Refer to note 26B for a detailed
analysis of how the impairment requirements of IFRS 9 ate applied.

Financial liabilities
Group’s financial liabilities include bank loan and insurance and reinsurance payables.
Classification and initial measurement of financial Labilities

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs
unless the Group designated a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss. Subsequently, financial
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

Derecognition of financial instruments

A financial asset (o1, when applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is derecognised when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

¢ The Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay
them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement

®  The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either:

- has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
- has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
not retained substantally all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement
that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
2.7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether thete is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used, These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples ot other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether thete is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decteased. If such
indication exists, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s ot CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of amortisation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Reinsurance contracts held

The Group cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its businesses. Reinsurance assets
represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurets are estimated in
a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated with the reinsurer’s
policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, or more frequently, when an
indication of impairment atises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when there is objective
evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance asset that the Group
may not receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably
measurable impact on the amounts that the Group will receive from the reinsurer. The impairment loss is
recorded in the consolidated statement of income. Gains ot losses on buying reinsurance are recognised in
the income statement immediately at the date of purchase and are not amortised. Ceded reinsurance
arrangements do not telieve the Group from its obligations to policyholders.

The Group also assumes teinsurance tisk in the notmal course of business for life insurance and general
insurance contracts where applicable. Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognised as
revenue or expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business,
taking into account the product classification of the reinsured business. Reinsurance liabilities represent
balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a manner consistent with the
related reinsurance conttact. Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and
assumed reinsurance. Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are
extinguished or expire ot when the contract is transfetred to another party. Reinsurance contracts that do
not transfer significant insurance risk are accounted for directly through the consolidated statement of
financial position. These ate deposit assets or financial liabilities that are recognised based on the
consideration paid or received less any explicit identified premiums or fees to be retained by the reinsured.
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2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
2.7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resoutces will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Employees’ end of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benefits to its expattiate employees. The entitlement to these benefits
is based upon the employees’ salary and length of setvice, subject to the completion of a minimum service
petiod. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.

With respect to its UAE national employees, the Group makes contributions to a pension fund established
by the General Pension and Social Security Authority calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries.
The Group’s obligations are limited to these contributions, which ate expensed when due.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements. They are disclosed unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is
not recognised in the consolidated financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits
is probable.

2.8 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities and the disclosute of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. Howevet, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of the asset or liability affected in the future. These factors could include:

Judgments and estimates

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements:

Tnsurance and reinsHrance contracts

The Group applies the PAA to s]mphfy the measutement of insurance contracts. When measuring liabilities
for remaining coverage, the PAA is broadly similat to the Group’s previous accounting treatment under
IFRS 4. However, when measuring liabilities for incurred claims, the Group now discounts cash flows that
are expected to occur more than one year after the date on which the claims are incurred and includes an
explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk.

Liability for remaining coverage

For insurance acquisition cash flows, the Group is eligible and chooses to capitalise all insurance acquisition
cashflows upon payments.

The effect of recognising insurance acquisition cash flows as an expense on initial recognition of group of
insurance contracts is to inctease the liability for remaining coverage on initial recognition and reduce the
likelihood of any subsequent onerous contract loss. There would be an increased charge to profit or loss
on initial recognition, due to expensing acquisition cash flows, offset by an increase in profit released over
the coverage period. For groups of contracts that are onerous, the liability for remaining coverage is
determined by the fulfilment cash flows.
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2.8 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
(continued)

Judgements and estimates (continued)
Liability for incurred claims

The ultimate cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection
techniques, such as Chain Ladder and Bornheuttet-Ferguson methods.

The main assumption undetlying these techniques is that a Group’s past claims development expetience
can be used to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. These methods
extrapolate the development of paid and incurred losses, average costs per claim (including claims handling
costs), and claim numbers based on the observed development of eatlier years and expected loss ratios.
Historical claims development is mainly analysed by accident years, but can also be further analysed by
geographical area, as well as by significant business lines and claim types. Large claims are usually separately
addressed, either by being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster estimates or separately projected in
order to reflect their future development. In most cases, no explicit assumptions are made regarding future
rates of claims inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the assumptions used are those implicit in the historical
claims development data on which the projections are based. Additional qualitative judgement is used to
assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in future, (e.g., to teflect one-off occurtences, changes
in external or market factors such as public attitudes to claiming, economic conditions, levels of claims
inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy features
and claims handling procedutes) in order to arrive at the estimated ultimate cost of claims that present the
probability weighted expected value outcome from the range of possible outcomes, taking account of all
the uncertainties involved.

Other key circumstances affecting the reliability of assumptions include vatiation in interest rates, delays in
settlement and changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Discount rates

The Group use bottom-up approach to derive the discount rate. Under this approach, the discount rate is
determined as the risk-free yield, adjusted for differences in liquidity chatracteristics between the financial
assets used to derive the risk-free yield and the relevant liability cash flows (known as an lliquidity
premium’). The risk-free rate was derived using swap tates available in the matket denominated in the same
currency as the product being measured. When swap rates are not available, highly liquid sovereign bonds
with a AAA credit rating were used. Management uses judgment to assess liquidity characteristics of the
liability cash flows.

Discount rates applied for discounting of future cash flows are listed below:

1 year 3 years 5 years 10 years 20 years
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Insurance contracts issued
5.95% 6.44% 4.91% 5.63% 4.69% 5.32% 4.64% 5.12% 4.65% 5.00%

Reinsurance contracts held
5.95% 6.44% 4.91% 5.63% 4.69% 5.32% 4.64% 512%  4.65% 5.00%

Risk adjustment for non-financial risk

The Group use Mack method of bootstrapping to determine its risk adjustment for non-financial risk, The
bootstrap effectively allows the Group to measure the uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash
flows that arise from non-financial risk since bootstrapping the triangles aims to illustrate the variability of
the paid claims.

The risk adjustment for non-financial tisk is the compensation that the Group requites for beating the
uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows of groups of insurance contracts. The risk
adjustment reflects an amount that an insurer would rationally pay to temove the uncertainty that future
cash flows will exceed the expected value amount.
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2.8 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
(conitued)

Judgements and estimates (continued)
Risk adjustment for non-financial risk (continued)

The Group has estimated the risk adjustment using a confidence level (probability of sufficiency) approach
at the 80th percentile. That is, the Group has assessed its indifference to uncertainty for all product lines
(as an indication of the compensation that it requires for beating non-financial tisk) as being equivalent to
the 80th percentile confidence level less the mean of an estimated probability distribution of the future cash
flows. The Group has estimated the probability distribution of the future cash flows, and the additional
amount above the expected present value of future cash flows required to meet the tatget percentiles.

Insurance and financial risk management

The Group’s insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with those
disclosed in the audited consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022.
There have been no changes in any tisk management policies since the year end.

The accounting policies in respect of property and equipment, intangible assets and financial assets have
been disclosed in this consolidated financial information as required by Secutities and Commodities
Authority (“SCA”) notification dated 12 Octobet 2008.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Valuation of unguoted equily investments

Valuation of unquoted equity investments is normally based on one of the following:

® recent arm’s length market transactions;

® current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; and

® the expected cash flows discounted at cutrent rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk
characteristics; or other valuation models.

Provision for outstanding claims, whether reported or not

Considerable judgement by management is required in the estimation of amounts due to contract holders
atising from claims made under insurance contracts. Such estimates ate necessatily based on significant
assumptions about several factors involving vatying, and possible significant, degrees of judgement and
uncertainty and actual results may differ from management’s estimates resulting in future changes in
estimated liabilities.

In patticular, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims teported at the
teporting date and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) at the
reporting date. The primary technique adopted by management in estimating the cost of notified and IBNR
claims, is that of using past claim settlement trends to predict future claim settlement trends.

Claims requiring court or arbitration decisions ate estimated individually. Independent loss adjusters
normally estimate property claims. Management reviews its provisions for claims incurred, and claims
incurred but not reposted, on a quartetly basis.

32



Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaties

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
2.8 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Ingpairment losses on insurance receivables

The Group reviews its insurance receivables on a regular basis to assess whether a provision for impairment
should be recorded in the consolidated statement of income. In particular, judgement by management is
required in the estimation of the amount and tdming of future cash flows when determining the level of
provisions required. Such estimates are necessatily based on assumptions about the probability of default
and probable losses in the event of default, the value of the undetlying security, and realisation costs.

In addition to specific provisions against individually significant insurance receivables, the Group also
makes a collective impairment provision against insurance receivables which, although not specifically
identified as requiring a specific provision, have a greater risk of default than when originally granted. The
amount of the provision is based on the historical loss pattern for insurance receivables within each grade
and is adjusted to reflect current economic changes.

Reinsnrance

The Group is exposed to disputes with, and possibility of defaults by, its reinsurers. The Group monitors
on a regular basis the evolution of disputes with and the strength of its reinsuters.
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3 INSURANCE SERVICE EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Incurred claims and other expenses
Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows
Changes to liabilities for incurred claims

Restated

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Incutred claims and other expenses
Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows
Changes to liabilities for incurred claims

Life and General
medical and motor Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
642,848 369,895 1,012,743
113,020 274,860 387,880
(10,234) (58,318) {(68,552)
745,634 586,437 1,332,071
315,899 281,315 597,214
61,016 133,091 194,107
(76) (59,756) (59,832)
376,839 354,650 731,489
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4 TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME AND NET INSURANCE FINANCIAL RESULT

The table below presents an analysis of total investment income and insurance financial result recognised
in profit or loss and OCI in the period:

Life and General and

For the year ended 31 December 2023 Medical Motor Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Investment income
Amounts recognised in the profit or loss
Interest income - 16,856 16,856
Dividend income from financial investments 3,070 21,142 24,212
Realised gain on disposal of financial investments
at FVIPL - (845) (845)
Othet income - (1,058) (1,058)
3,070 36,095 39,165
Insurance finance income/(expenses) from
insurance contracts issued
Interest accreted to insurance conttacts using
cutrent financial assumptions (1,387) (9,775) (11,162)
Due to changes in interest rates and other
financial assumptions 31 225 256
Total insurance finance expenses from
insurance contracts issued (1,356) (9,550) (10,906)
Represented by:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss (1,356) (9,550) (10,906)
Reinsurance finance income/(expenses) from
reinsurance contracts held
Interest accreted to reinsurance contracts using
current financial assumptions 1,061 9,303 10,364
Due to changes in interest rates and other
financial assumptions (15) (214) (229)
Reinsurance finance income from reinsurance
contracts held 1,046 9,089 10,135
Represented by:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss 1,046 9,089 10,135
Total insurance finance expenses and
reinsurance finance income (310) (461) (771)
Represented by:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss (310) (461) (771)
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4 TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME AND NET INSURANCE FINANCIAL RESULT
(Continued)

The table below presents an analysis of total investment income and insurance financial result recognised
in profit or loss and OCI in the petiod:

Lifeand  General and

For the year ended 31 December 2022 Medical Motor Total
Restated Restated Restated
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

Investment income
Amounts recognised in the profit or loss

Interest income - 5,782 5,782
Dividend income from financial investments 3,101 19,002 22,103
Realised gain on disposal of financial investments

at FVIPL - @ @
Other income - (630 (630)

3,101 24,152 27,253

Insurance finance income/(expenses) from

insurance contracts issued
Interest accreted to insurance contracts using

current financial assumptons (202) (1,947 (2,149
Due to changes in interest rates and other

financial assumptions 1,035 7,933 8,968
Total insurance finance expenses from insurance

contracts issued 833 5,986 6,819
Represented by:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss 833 5,986 6,819
Reinsurance finance income/ (expenses) from

reinsurance contracts held
Interest accreted to reinsurance contracts using

current financial assumptions 160 1,836 1,996
Due to changes in interest rates and other

financial assumptions (793) (7,544 (8,337)
Reinsurance finance income from reinsutance

contracts held (633) (5,708) (6,341)
Represented by:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss (633) (5,708) (6,341)
Total insurance finance expenses and teinsurance

finance income 200 278 478
Represented by:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss 200 278 478
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is organised into two segments: Life and Medical as one segment and Motor and General as the
other segment.

These segments are the basis on which the Group reports its ptimary segment information to the Chief
Executive Officer. Insurance revenue represent the total income agising from insurance contracts. The Group
does not conduct any business outside the UAE. There are no transactions between the business segments.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s condensed consolidated intetim income statement classified by major

segments:
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Life and Motor and
Medical General Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Insurance tevenue 747,378 1,402,426 2,149,804
Insurance service expenses (745,634) (586,437) (1,332,071)
Insurance service result before reinsurance
contracts held 1,744 815,989 817,733
Allocation of reinsurance premiums (339,394) (956,378) (1,295,772)
Amounts recoverable from reinsurance 335,562 265,546 601,108
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts
held (3,832) (690,832) (694,664)
Investment income 3,070 36,095 39,165
Finance expenses from insurance conttracts issued (1,356) (9,550) (10,906)
Finance income from reinsurance contracts held 1,046 9,089 10,135
Net insurance financial result (310) (461) (771)
Other operating expenses (26) (19,547) (19,573)
Net Profit for the period 646 141,244 141,890
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
For the yeat ended 31 December 2022
Life and Motor and
Medical General Total
Restated Restated Restated
AED000 AED000 AED’000
Insurance revenue 380,763 814,538 1,195,301
Insurance service expenses (376,839) (354,650) (731,489)
Insurance service result befote reinsurance
contracts held 3,924 459,888 463,812
Allocation of reinsurance premiums (233,461) (576,507) (809,968)
Amounts recoverable from reinsurance 242,778 178,905 421,683
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts held 9,317 (397,602) (388,285)
Investment income 3,101 24,152 27,253
Finance expenses from insurance contracts issued 833 5,986 6,819
Finance income from reinsurance contracts held (633) (5,708) (6,341)
Net insurance financial result 200 278 478
Other operating expenses - (13,218) (13,218)
Net profit for the period 16,542 73,498 90,040
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets, liabilities and equity classified by segment:
As at 31 December 2023
Life and Motor and
Medical General Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Total assets 238,424 2,591,648 2,830,072
Total liabilities 313,005 1,726,502 2,039,507
As at 31 December 2022
Life and Motor and
Medical General Total
Restated Restated Restated
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Total assets 183,321 1,871,117 2,054,438
Total liabilities 133,663 1,276,651 1,410,314
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Gross written premium

Details relating to gross written premium are disclosed below to comply with the requirements of CBUAE
and are not calculated as per the requirements of IFRS 17.

All types of
Life Fund Medical Property & Business
31 December 2023 Insurance Accumulation  Insurance Liability = Combined
AED000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Ditect Written Premiums 3,245 - 933,795 1,585,641 2,522,681
Assumed Business
Foreign - - - - -
Local - - (1,067) 288,704 287,637
Total Assumed Business - - (1,067) 288,704 287,637
Gross Written Premiums 3,245 - 932,728 1,874,345 2,810,318
31 December 2022
Direct Written Premiums 2,624 - 425,803 872,398 1,300,825
Assumed Business
Foreign - - - - -
Local - - 3,344 164,973 168,317
Total Assumed Business - - 3,344 164,973 168,317
Gross Written Premiums 2,624 - 429,147 1,037,371 1,469,142
6 OTHERS OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating expenses allocable to the underwriting and non-underwriting activities include mainly the
following:
2023 2022
AED000 AED000
Staff costs 39,241 29,158
Rental costs — short term operating leases* 641 995
Social conttibutions®* 1,000 800

* The Group has elected not to recognise a lease liability for short term leases (leases with an expected term
of 12 months or less) and for leases of low value assets. Payments made under such leases ate expensed on

a straight-line basis.

** Both the years social contributions were paid to Islamic affairs & Charitable Activities Department,
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7

weighted average number of shares outstanding duting the year as follows:

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year, net of directors’ fees, by the

Profit for the year (in AED’000°)

Directors’ fee (in AED’000%)
Net (in AED’000)

Weighted average number of shates outstanding during the year (‘000)

Earnings per share (AED’000%)

Restated

2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
141,890 90,040
(4,512) (5,212)
137,378 84,828
100,000 100,000
1.374 0.848

No figures for diluted eatnings per shate are presented as the Group has not issued any instruments which
would have an impact on earnings per share when exercised.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

8

Cost:
At 1 January 2023
Additions during the yeat
At 31 December 2023

Depreciation:
At 1 January 2023
Charge for the year
At 31 December 2023

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2023

Cost:
At 1 January 2022
Additions duting the year
At 31 December 2022

Depreciation:
At 1 January 2022
Charge for the year
At 31 December 2022

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2022

Furniture and Motor

Land equipment vehicles Total
AED’000 AED000 AED’000 AED’000
44,173 22,624 850 67,647
- 5,584 729 6,313
44,173 28,208 1,579 73,960
- (17,925) (824) (18,749)

- (3,064) (199) (3,263)

- (20,989) (1,023) (22,012)
44,173 7,219 556 51,948
44,173 20,704 850 65,727
- 1,920 - 1,920
44,173 22,624 850 67,647
- (15,904) (808) (16,712)

- (2,021) (16) (2,037)

- (17,925) (824) (18,749)
44,173 4,699 26 48,898
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8 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The depreciation charge for the year of AED 3,263 thousand (2022: AED 2,037 thousand) has been
allocated as follows:

2023 2022

AED’000 AED’000

Underwriting expenses 2,447 1,528
Non-underwriting expenses 816 509
3,263 2,037

Included in property and equipment is land situated in the Emirate of Dubai, United Arab Emirates with a
carrying value of AED 44,173 thousand (2022: AED 44,173 thousand). The Group’s Boatd of Directors
has resolved to construct the Group’s head office on the land in the foteseeable future.

9 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Freehold
land Building Total
AED’000 AED000 AED’000
Cost:
At 1 January 2023 17,296 66,484 83,780
At 31 December 2023 17,296 66,484 83,780
Depreciation:
At 1 January 2023 - (19,507) (19,507)
Charge for the year - (745) (745)
At 31 December 2023 - (20,252) (20,252)
Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2023 17,296 46,232 63,528
Cost:
At 1 January 2022 17,296 66,484 83,780
At 31 December 2022 17,296 66,484 83,780

Depreciation:

At 1 January 2022 - (18,764) (18,764)
Charge for the year - (743) (743)

At 31 December 2022 - (19,507) (19,507
Net carrying amount:

At 31 December 2022 17,296 46,977 64,273

Investment properties comprise of properties as mentioned below:

Lands at Nad Al Shiba First, Dubai

These properties are carried at cost and the fair value of the investment properties as of 31 December 2023,
based on a valuation undertaken by an independent qualified valuer, amounted to AED 15,000 thousand
each (2022: AED 7,508 thousand).
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9 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Land and Building at Deira, Dubai

The property is cattied at cost and the fait value of the investment property as of 31 December 2023, based
on an average of valuation undertaken by independent qualified valuers, amounted to AED 34,644
thousand (2022: AED 34,875 thousand).

Land and Building at Satwa, Dubai

The property which is carried at cost and the fair value of the investment property as of 31 December 2023,
based on an average of valuation undertaken by independent qualified valuers, amounted to AED 39,037
thousand (2022: AED 31,100 thousand).

The fair value of investment properties has been determined using level 3 fair value hierarchy.

10 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Carrying value Fair value
2023 2022 2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Financial instruments
At fair value through profit or loss
(note 10(a)) 3,628 3,358 3,628 3,858
At fair value through other
comprehensive income (note 10(b)) 587,784 523,858 587,784 523,858
At amortised cost (note 10(c)) 320,490 177,924 319,855 178,731
911,902 705,640 911,267 706,447
10(a) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
Shares — quoted 3,628 3,858
3,628 3,858

10(b) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2023 2022

AED’000 AED’000

Shares — quoted (within UAE) 413,635 372,257
Shares — unquoted (outside UAE) 172,929 143,561
Shates — unquoted (within UAE) 1,220 8,040
587,784 523,858

The fair value gain amounting to AED 26,367 thousand (2022: AED 6,207 thousand) has been recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
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10  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

10(c) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST

2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000

Debt securities 43,325 29,133
*Bank deposits 277,165 148,791
320,490 177,924

*The entire shares and bank deposits are within the United Arab Emirates. Bank deposits include deposits
amounting to AED 198,271 thousand (2022: AED 148,791 thousand) with maturity over three months up
to twelve months as at the reporting date with an effective interest rate 4.40% to 5.30%.

2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000

Amortised cost
Debt securities (within UAE) 22,792 20,984
Debt securities (outside UAE) 20,533 8,149
43,325 29,133

The investments carry interest at an effective interest rate 6.83% per annum, The maturity profile of these
debt instruments is shown below:

31 December 2023
Less than5 More than 5
years years Total

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

Debt securities (within UAE) 3,608 19,184 22,792
Debst secutities (outside UAE) 20,533 - 20,533
24,141 19,184 43,325

31 December 2022
Less than 5 Motre than 5

years years Total

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

Debt secutities (within UAE) 1,797 19,187 20,984
Debt securities (outside UAE) 7,232 917 8,149
9,029 20,104 29,133

11 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Determination of fair value and fair values hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly ot indirectly; and

Level 3: techniques that use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not
based on observable market data.
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n FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Determination of fair value and fair values hierarchy (continued)

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair
value hierarchy:

Total
Levell Level 2 Level 3 fair value
AED000 AED000 AED000 AED’000
At 31 December 2023
Financial instruments

At fair valne through profit or loss:
Quoted equity securities 3,628 - - 3,628
3,628 - - 3,628

At fair value through other comprebensive
income:

Quoted equity securities 413,635 - - 413,635
Unquoted equity securities - - 174,149 174,149
413,635 - 174,149 587,784

417,263 - 174,149 591,412

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 fair value

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

At 31 December 2022
Financial instruments

At fair value through profit or loss:
Quoted equity secutities 3,858 - - 3,858
3,858 - - 3,858

At fair vale through other conprebensive
income:

Quoted equity securities 372,257 - - 372,257
Unquoted equity securities - - 151,601 151,601
372,257 - 151,601 523,858
376,115 - 151,601 527,716
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11 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Asset for which fair value approximates catrying value

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have shott term maturities (ess than three months) it is assumed
that the carrying amounts approximate their fair values. This assumption is also applied to insutance receivables,
reinsurance payables, demand deposits and savings accounts without specific maturity. Fair value of quoted
bonds is based on price quotations at the reporting date. Long term bank loan and bank deposits designated at
FVTPL are evaluated by the Group based on Level 2 input parameters such as interest rates.

12 INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS

The breakdown of groups of insurance and reinsurance contracts issued, and reinsurance contracts held, that are
in an asset position and those in a liability position is set out in the table below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Restated
Assets Liabilities Net Assets Liabilities Net
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED000 AED’000 AED’000
Insurance
contracts
issued
Life and
Medical - (303,050) (303,050) - (131,019) (131,019)
General and
Motor - (1,366,146) (1,366,146) - (1,082,247) (1,082,247)
- (1,669,196) (1,669,196) - (1,213,266) (1,213,266)
Reinsurance
contracts
held
Life and
Medical 158,703 - 158,703 112,347 - 112,347
General and
Motor 1,021,099 - 1,021,099 771,601 - 771,601
1,179,802 - 1,179,802 883,948 - 883,948

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued showing the liability for remaining
coverage and the liability for incurred claims.

The Group disaggregates information to provide disclosure in respect of major product lines sepatately: Life &
Medical and General & Motor. This disaggregation has been determined based on how the Group is managed.

The roll-forward of the net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued, showing the liability for remaining
coverage and the liability for incurred claims, is disclosed in the table on the next page:
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Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

13 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2023 2022

AED’000 AED’000

Accrued interest receivable 7,179 2,295
Prepayments 3,549 4,623
Staff debtors and advances 108 335
VAT teceivable 14,110 10,517
Other receivables * 29,797 12,184
54,743 29,954

* It includes the payment of AED 11 million to Al Financial Technologies Holding against the right to its
certain shares in January 2025,

14 STATUTORY DEPOSITS

2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
Bank deposits:
Amounts that cannot be withdrawn without the prior approval
of the Ministry of Economy in accordance with
Article 42 of Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 10,000 10,000

The bank deposit expites after one year and is renewable evety year and eatns an interest of 4.40% per
annum (2022: 2.10%) per annum.

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise the following
consolidated statement of financial position amounts:

2023 2022

AED’000 AED000

Cash on hand 26 41
Cash at banks 558,123 311,684
558,149 311,725

Cash and cash equivalents are within United Arab Emirates, Eutope and GCC.

16 SHARE CAPITAL
2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
Issued and fully paid 100,000,000 shares of AED 1 each
{2022: 100,000,000 shares of AED 1 each) 100,000 100,000

17 RESERVES
NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

Statutory reserve

In accordance with UAE Commercial Companies Law and the Group’s Articles of Association, the Group
has resolved to discontinue the annual transfer of 10% of the profit for the year since the statutory reserve
reached 50% of the paid-up shate capital. The reserve is not available for distribution, except in the
citcumstances stipulated by the UAE Commetcial Companies Law.
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Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaties

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

17 RESERVES (Continued)
NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES (Continued)
General reserve

Transfers to the general reserve are made on the tecommendation of the Boatd of Directors. During the
year, no transfer was made (31 December 2022: nil) was transferred to the general reserve from retained
earnings. This reserve may be used for such purposes as deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors.

Reinsurance reserve

In accotdance with Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates’ Board of Directors’ Decision No. 23, Article
34, an amount of AED 9,789 thousand (31 December 2022: AED 5,216 thousand) based on the teinsurance
share of premium at a rate of 0.5% was transferred from tretained earnings to reinsurance reserve, The
reserve is not available for distribution and will not be disposed of without priot approval from Central
Bank of the United Arab Emirates.

Cumulative changes in fair value of investments

This reserve tecords fair value changes on financial instruments held at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

18 DIVIDENDS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the shareholders at the annual general meeting dated 13 March 2023
approved a cash dividend of 50% (AED 0.50 per share) totalling AED 50 million. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the shareholders at the annual general meeting dated 10 March 2022 approved a cash
dividend of 40% (AED 0.40 pet shate) totalling AED 40 million.

19 EMPLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

Movements in the provision recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

2023 2022

AED’000 AED’000

Provision as at 1 January 5,809 5,537
Provided during the year 1,334 927
End of service benefits paid (185) (655)
Provision as at 31 December 6,958 5,809

20 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties represent, major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Group, and
entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. The pricing policies and
terms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s management.

The significant balances outstanding at 31 December in respect of related parties included in the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

2023 2022
AED’000 AED000

Affiliates of major sharebolders:
Due from policyholders 33,508 45,392
Qutstanding claims 8,200 32,160

The income and expenses in respect of related parties included in the consolidated financial statements are
as follows:
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Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

20 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000

Alffiliates of major shareholders:
Premiums 48,942 36,101
Claims paid (49,290) (1,2406)
Admin and facilitation fees (7,689) (4,858)
Rent received 59 58
Rent paid (483) (542)

Compensation of the key management personnel is as follows:

2023 2022
AED000 AED’000
Shott term employee benefits 8,416 7,344
End of service benefits 268 270
8,684 7,614

Outstanding balances at the year-end atise in the normal coutse of business. For the years ended
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Group has recorded expected credit losses of AED 11
thousand on balances owed by related parties respectively.

21 DIRECTORS’ FEES

Directors’ fees have been included as an appropriation of net profit for the year AED 4,512 thousand
(2022: 5,210 thousand)

22 RISK MANAGEMENT
(a) Governance framework

The primary objective of the Group’s risk and financial management framework is to protect the Group’s
shareholders from events that hinder the sustainable achievement of financial performance objectives,
including failing to exploit opportunites. Key management recognises the critical importance of having
efficient and effective risk management systems in place.

The Group’s tisk management function is cattied out by the board of directors, with its associated
committees. This is supplemented with a clear organisational structure with documented delegated
authorities and responsibilities from the boatd of ditectors to the Chief Executive Officer and seniot
managers.

The board of directors meets regularly to approve any commercial, regulatory and organisational decisions.
The Chief Executive Officer under the authority delegated from the board of directors defines the Group’s
risk and its interpretation, limit structure to ensure the appropriate quality and diversification of assets, align
underwriting and reinsurance strategy to the corporate goals, and specify reporting requirements.

The Group’s enterprise risk management framewotk is established to identify and analyse the key risks
faced by the Group to set appropriate controls and manage those risks. As part of the risks identification
process, the Group uses risk based capital model to assess the capital requirement and uses stress analysis
to apply changes to capital. The Group’s risk appetite is derived from the changes to capital.
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Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

22 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Capital management framework

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to comply with the regulatory requirements in
the UAE and to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratio in order to suppott its business and maximise
shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group fully complied with the
externally imposed capital requirements and no changes wete made in the objectives, policies or ptocesses
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022,

(c) Regulatory framework

Regulators are primarily interested in protecting the rights of the policyholders and monitot them closely
to ensure that the Group is satisfactorily managing affairs for their benefit. At the same time, the regulators
are also interested in ensuring that the Group maintains an appropsiate solvency position to meet
unforeseen liabilities arising from economic shocks or natural disasters.

The operations of the Group are also subject to tegulatory requirements within the jurisdiction where it
operates. Such regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoting of activities, but also impose certain
testrictive provisions (e.g. capital adequacy) to minimise the risk of default and insolvency on the part of
the insurance companies to meet unforeseen liabilities as these atise.

(d) Asset liability management (ALM) framework

Financial risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are
exposed to general and specific market movements. The Group manages these positions to achieve long-
term investment returns in excess of its obligations under insurance contracts. The ptincipal technique of
the Group’s ALM is to match assets to the liabilities arising from insurance contracts by reference to the
type of benefits payable to contract holdets.

The Chief Executive Officer actively monitors the ALM to ensure in each period sufficient cash flow is
available to meet liabilities atising from insurance contracts.

‘The Chief Executive Officer regularly monitors the financial risks associated with the Group’s other
financial assets and liabilities not ditectly associated with insurance liabilities.
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22 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
22A Insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance conttact is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty
of the amount of the resulting claim. By the nature of an insurance contract, this tisk is random and
therefore unpredictable. Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk diversification in terms of
type and amount of risk, geographical location and type of industry covered.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning,
the principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit
payments exceed the estimated amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency
or sevetity of claims and benefits are greater than estimated. Insurance events are random and the actual
number and amount of claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the estimate established using
statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative
variability about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be
affected across the board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group has developed its insurance
underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of these categoties
to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The Group manages risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and
proactive claims handling. The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks ate well
diversified in terms of type and amount of risk, industry and geography. Underwriting limits are in place to
enforce appropriate risk selection ctiteria.

Frequency and severity of claims

The Group has the right not to tenew individual policies, to te-price the risk, to impose deductibles and to
reject the payment of a fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts also entitle the Group to putsue thitd patties
for payment of some or all costs (for example, subrogation). Furthermore, the Group’s strategy limits the
total exposure to any one tertitory and the exposure to any one industry.

Property insurance contracts are underwritten by reference to the commercial replacement value of the
properties and contents insured, and claim payment limits are always included to cap the amount payable
on occurrence of the insured event. Cost of rebuilding properties, of replacement or indemnity for contents
and time taken to restart operations for business interruption are the key factors that influence the level of
claims under these policies. The insurance risk arising from insurance contracts is not concentrated in any
of the territories in which the Group operates, and there is a balance between commercial and personal
properties in the overall portfolio of insured buildings.

For motor contracts the main risks are claims for death and bodily injury and the replacement or repair of
vehicles. The level of court awards for deaths and to injuted parties and the replacement costs of motor
vehicles are the key factors that influence the level of claims. For marine insurance the main risks are loss
or damage to marine craft and accidents resulting in the total or partial loss of cargoes. The underwriting
strategy for the matine class of business is to ensure that policies are well diversified in terms of vessels and
shipping routes covered. For medical insurance, the main risks are illness and related healthcare costs. For
group life and personal accident, the main risks are claims from death and permanent or pattial disability.
The Group generally does not offer medical insurance to walk-in customers. Medical, group life and
petsonal accident insurance are generally offered to corporate customers with large population to be
covered under the policy.
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22 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
22A.  Insurance risk (continued)
Reinsurance risk

In common with other insurance companies, in order to minimise financial exposute arising from large
insurance claims, the Gtoup, in the normal course of business, entets into arrangements with other parties
for reinsurance purposes. Such reinsurance arrangements provide for greater diversification of business,
allow management to control exposute to potential losses arising from large risks, and provide additional
capacity for growth. A significant portion of the reinsurance is affected under treaty, facultative and excess
of loss reinsurance contracts.

To minimise its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Group evaluates the financial
condition of its reinsurers. The Group deals with reinsurers approved by the Board of Directors.

The five largest reinsurers account for 79% of amounts due from reinsurance companies at
31 December 2023 (2022: 71%). The maximum theoretical credit tisk exposute in this connection is mainly
in Europe.

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claims-occurtence basis. The Group is liable for all insured
events that occurred during the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the
contract term. As a result, liability claims are settled over a long period of time and element of the claims
provision includes incurred but not reported claims (IBNR). The estimation of IBNR is generally subject
to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the
Group, where information about the claim event is available. IBNR claims may not be appatent to the
insured until many years after the event that gave rise to the claims. For some insutance conttacts, the
IBNR proportion of the total liability is high and will typically display greater variations between initial
estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degtee of difficulty of estimating these liabilities. In
estimating the lability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Group considers information
available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in
previous periods. Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected separately in order to allow
for the possible distortive effect of their development and incidence on the rest of the pottfolio.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Group takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has
apptropriate information regarding its claims’ exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing
claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability
established.

The amount of insurance claims is particularly sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development
of legal precedent on matters of contract and tort. Insurance contracts ate also subject to the emergence
of new types of latent claims, but no allowance is included for this at the end of the repotting petiod.

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of provisions. This
provides a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the experience being projected. The projections
given by the various methodologies also assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes. The most
approptiate estimation technique is selected taking into account the characteristics of the business class and
the extent of the development of each accident year.

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both teported and not), the Group’s estimation
techniques are a combination of loss-ratio-based estimates and an estimate based upon actual claims
experience using predetermined formulae where greater weight is given to actual claims experience as tme
passes. The initial loss-ratio estimate is an important assumption in the estimation technique and is based
on previous years’ expetience, adjusted for factors such as premium rate changes, anticipated market
experience and historical claims inflation.

The initial estimate of the loss ratios used for the current year before and after reinsurance are analysed
below by type of risk where the insured operates for current and prior year premium earned.

57




Dubai Insurance Company (P.S.C.) and its subsidiaties

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

22 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

22A  Insurance risk (continued)

year ended 31 December 2023 year ended 31 December 2022
Gross loss Net loss Gross loss Net loss
Type of risk ratio ratio ratio ratio
Life insurance 40% 32% 33% 22%
General insurance 42%, 42% 40% 23%

Process used to decide on assumptions

The risks associated with insurance contracts are complex and subject to a numbert of vatiables that
complicate quantitative sensitivity analysis. Internal data is detived mostly from the Group’s quarterly
claims reports and screening of the actual insurance contracts carried out at the end of the reporting period
to derive data for the contracts held. The Group uses assumptions based on a mixture of internal and
market data to measure its claims liabilities. The Group has reviewed the individual contracts and in
particular the industries in which the insured companies operate and the actual exposure years of claims.
This information is used to develop scenatios telated to the latency of claims that are used for the
projections of the ultimate number of claims.

The choice of selected results for each accident year of each class of business depends on an assessment of
the technique that has been most approptiate to observed historical developments. In certain instances, this
has meant that different techniques or combinations of techniques have been selected for individual
accident years or groups of accident years within the same class of business.

Sensitivity
The liability for incurted claims is sensitive to the key assumptions in the table below. It has not been
possible to quantify the sensitivity of certain assumptions such as legislative changes or uncertainty in the

estimation process. The following sensitivity analysis shows the impact on gross and net liabilities, net profit
and equity for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other assumptions held constant.

The cortelation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impacts, but to
demonstrate the impact due to changes in each assumption, assumptions had to be changed on an individual
basis.

It should be noted that movements in these assumptions ate non-lineat. The method used for detiving
sensitivity information and significant assumptions did not change from the previous period,

Impacton Impacton Impacton Impacton

net profit net profit equity  equity net

Change in gross of net of gross of of

2023 assumptions reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

Loss reserves 5% 21,192 4,785 21,192 4,785
Risk Adjustment 5% 878 197 878 197
Discount rate 0.5% (1,011) (137) (1,011) (137)
Loss reserves -5% (21,192) (4,785) (21,192) (4,785)
Risk Adjustment -5% (878) (197) (878) (197)
Discount rate -0.5% 1,020 138 1,020 138
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22 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

22A  Insurance risk (continued)

Sensitivity (continued)
Impacton  Impacton  Impacton  Impacton
net profit net profit equity equity net
Change in gross of net of gross of of
2022 (restated) assumptions  reinsurance  teinsurance  reinsurance  reinsurance
AED’000 AED000 AED’000 AED000
Loss reserves +5% 18,545 2,028 18,545 2,028
Risk Adjustment +5% 889 102 889 102
Discount rate +0.5% (1,003) (73) (1,003) (73)
Loss resetves -5% (18,545) (2,028) (18,545) (2,028)
Risk Adjustment -5% (889) (102) (889) (102)
Discount rate -0.5% 1,012 74 1,012 74

22B Financial risk

The Group’s principal financial instruments include financial assets and financial liabilities which comprise
financial investments (at fair value through profit ot loss and other comptehensive income), receivables
atising from insurance and reinsurance contracts, statutory deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other payables, and re-insurance balance payables.

The Group does not enter into detivative transactions.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, geographical risk, liquidity
risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial loss. For all classes of financial assets held by the Group, the maximum
exposure to credit risk to the Group is the carrying value as disclosed in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Group’s exposute to credit risk:

® The Group only enters into insutance and reinsurance contracts with tecognised, credit worthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivables from insurance and reinsurance contracts are
monitored on an ongoing basis in ordet to reduce the Group’s exposute to bad debts.

® The Group seeks to limit credit risk with respect to agents and brokers by setting credit limits for
individual agents and brokers and monitoring outstanding receivables.

® The Group’s investments at fair value through profit or loss or OCI ate managed by the Chief
Executive Officer in accordance with the guidance of the Chairman and the supervision of the Boatd
of Directots.

® The Group’s bank balances are maintained with a range of international and local banks in accordance
with limits set by the management.
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22 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
22B  Financial risk (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the consolidated
statement of financial position:

2023 2022

Notes AED’000 AED’000

Financial instruments — deposits and debt instruments 320,490 177,924
Other receivables (excluding prepayments) 12 51,194 25,331
Statutory deposits 14 10,000 10,000
Cash and cash equivalents 15 558,149 311,725
Total credit risk exposure 939,833 524,980

Where financial instruments are tecorded at fair value the amounts shown above represent the current
credit risk exposure but not the maximum tisk exposute that could arise in the future as a result of changes
in value.

All the Group’s investments in bonds measured at amortised cost are considered to have low credit tisk
and the loss allowance recognised is based on the 12 months expected loss. Management considers “low
credit risk” for bonds to be those with high quality external credit ratings (investment grade). The credit
risk in respect of deposits with banks (including statutoty deposits) and cash and cash equivalent held with
banks are managed via diversificadon of bank deposits and ate only with major teputable financial
institutions. Reinsurance assets and the associated risks including Group’s appropriate measure have been
discussed in detail in the “Reinsurance risk™ section. Other receivables (excluding prepayments) have been
determined by management not to have a material credit risk hence no allowance for expected credit losses
has been recognized as at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

Insurance receivables comptise a large number of customers and insurance companies mainly within the
United Arab Emitates. Reinsurance assets are from reinsurance companies based mainly in Europe and the
Middle East.

The Group’s financial position can be analysed by the following geographical regions:

2023 2022

Liabilities Contingent Liabilities Contingent
and liabilities and and  liabilities and
Assets equity commitments Assets equity commitments
AED000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

United Arab
Emirates 1,955,284 2,538,298 10,105 1,328,916 1,880,528 10,105
Europe 542,256 188,237 - 265,184 117,813 -
Rest of the world 332,532 103,537 - 460,338 56,097 -
Total 2,830,072 2,830,072 10,105 2,054,438 2,054,438 10,105

The table on next page provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Group by classifying
financial assets according to the Group’s credit rating of counterparties.
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22 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
22B  Financial risk (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
31 December 2023
Neither past due nor impaired
High Standard Sub-standard Past due and
grade grade grade impaired Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Financial instruments - 320,490 - - 320,490
Reinsurance assets - 1,179,802 - - 1,179,802
Other receivables (excluding
prepayments) - 51,194 - - 51,194
Statutory deposits 10,000 - - - 10,000
Cash and cash equivalents 558,149 - - - 558,149
568,149 1,551,486 - - 2,119,635
31 December 2022
Neither past due nor impaired
High  Standard  Sub-standatd  Past due and
grade grade grade impaired Total
AED000  AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Financial instruments - 177,924 - - 177,924
Reinsurance assets - 883,948 - - 883,948
Other receivables (excluding
prepayments) - 25,331 - - 25,331
Statutory deposits 10,000 - - - 10,000
Cash and cash equivalents 311,725 - - - 311,725
321,725 1,087,203 - - 1,408,928

The following table provides an ageing analysis of insurance receivables arising from insurance and

reinsurance contracts past due but not impaired:

Past due but not impaired
Neither 91 to 181t 2711
past due nor 90 180 270 365 > 365
inipaired days days days days days

Total

Past
due and
impaired Total

AEDG00 AED000 AED000 AED000 AED'000 AED000 AED000 AED000 AED000

2023 276,555 139,806 34,822 12,973 6,047 24,858 495,061 (14,809) 480,252

2022 108,300 203,924 30,311 6,907 7,279 21,541 378,262 (13,909) 364,353

For assets to be classified as ‘past due and impaired’ the contractual payments in arrears are more than 180
days and an impairment adjustment is recorded in the consolidated statement of income for this. When the
credit exposure is adequately secured or when management is confident of settlement, atrears more than
180 days might still be classified as ‘past due but not impaired”, with no impairment adjustment recorded.
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22 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

22B  Financial risk (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Insurance receivables days past due (AED’000)
365 days
31 December 2023 0-90 days 91-365 days  and above Total
Expected credit loss rates 1.89% 0.76% 26.25%
Gross carrying amount 416,361 53,842 24,858 495,061
Life-time expected credit losses 7,875 410 6,524 14,809
Insurance receivables days past due (AED’000)
365 days
31 December 2022 0-90 days  91-365days  and above Total
Expected credit loss rates 1.79% 0.60% 37.38%
Gross cartying amount 312,224 44,497 21,541 378,262
Life-time expected credit losses 5,588 269 8,052 13,909
Geographical risk

The Group has geographical risk exposure. Such exposute atises from investments, cash and cash
equivalents and insurance contracts concentrated within certain geographical areas. The investments and
cash and cash equivalents are primarily with local companies and financial institutions. The risk atising from
insurance contracts is concentrated mainly in the United Arab Emirates. The geographical concentration
of risks is similar to previous year,

In accordance with the requirement of the Securities and Commodities Authority (Circular dated
12-10-2011) following are the details of the geographical concentration of assets in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2022:

(2) Investment property

Investment property represents the Group’s investment in a freehold land and building situated in the
Emirate of Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

(b) Financial instruments — investments

Investments in financial assets represent investments in quoted and unquoted shares of companies
incorporated within and outside the United Arab Emirates and investments in bonds issued locally and
outside United Arab Emirates.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are with banks registered and operating in the United Atab
Emirates and in Europe.

Currency risk

The Group also has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure atises from investments in securities
and reinsurance transactions in currencies other that the Group’s functional currency.
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22 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

22B  Financial risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

At 31 December, the Group’s exposute to foreign cuttency risk was as follows:

2023 2022

AED’000 AED’000

Debt instruments at amortised cost - US Dollars 43,325 29,133
Insurance receivables - US Dollars 41,493 66,149
- Euro 321 980

GBP 72 - 930

- Others 1,177 3,178

Other receivables - US Dollars 11,632 397
Cash and cash equivalents - US Dollars 22,847 9,793
- Euro 4,112 4,870

- GBP 107 45

- Others = -

Reinsurance insurance payables - US Dollars 10,061 11,514
- Enro 201 1,506

- GBP 67 3,115

- Others 3,664 10,054

Other payables - US Dollars 1,046 827
- Euro 122 141

- GBP 4 4

- Others - 39

The table on next page demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign currency
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit. The effect of decreases in
exchange rates is expected to be equal and opposite to the effect of the increases shown. There is no effect
on equity.

Increase Effect Effect
in exchange on profit on profit
rate AED’000 AED’000
2023 2022
Assets

US Dollats +5% 5,965 5,274
Eutro +5% 222 293
GBP +5% 9 49
Others +5% 59 159

Liabilities
US Dollats +5% 555 617
Euro +5% 16 82
GBP +5% 4 156
Others +5% 183 505
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22 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

22B  Financial risk (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

31 December 2023
Reinsurance contract assets

Insurance contract liabilities

31 December 2022 (restated)
Reinsurance contract assets

Insurance contract liabilities

Interest rate risk

Less than 1 1-5 5+
year years years Total
AED000° AED000" AED’000 AED’000
1,119,992 59,810 - 1,179,802
1,604,513 64,683 - 1,669,196

Less than 1 1-5 5+
yeat years years Total
AED’000 AED000" AED000 AED000
597,139 286,809 - 883,948
268,713 944,553 - 1,213,266

Interest rate tisk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. Floating rate instruments expose the Group to cash flow interest risk,
whereas fixed interest rate instruments expose the Group to fair value interest risk.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on certain of its investment in financial insttuments held at fair
value though profit or loss, designated upon initial recognition, statutoty deposits and bank loan. The
Group limits interest rate risk by monitoring changes in interest rates in the currencies in which its cash
and interest-beating investments and borrowings are denominated.

Interest rate sensitivity

The effective interest rates for all major classes of interest-bearing financial instruments as at

31 Decembet, ate as follows:

31 December 2023
Time deposits

31 December 2022
Time deposits

Total
AED’000

277,165
277,165

148,791

148,791

Effective
interest rate %

4.40% to 5.30%

1.05% to 4.65%

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for interest-
beating financial assets assuming the amount of assets at the end of the repotting petiod were outstanding

for the whole yeat.
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22 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
22B  Financial risk (continued)
Interest rate sensitivity (continued)

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other vatiables were held constant, the
Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 would increase/decrease by AED 2,772 thousand
(2022: AED 1,448 thousand).

Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of

equity indices and the value of individual stocks. The equity price tisk exposute arises from the Group’s
investment portfolio.

The effect on equity (as a result of a change in the fair value of equity instruments held as financial assets
at fair value through others comprehensive income at 31 December 2023) and on consolidated statement
of income (as a result of changes in fair value of equity instruments held as financial assets through profit
or loss) due to a reasonably possible change in equity indices, with all other variables held constant, is as
follows:

2023 2022

Change Effect on Change Effect on

in equity Effect on income  inequity Effecton income

price equity statement price equity  statement

% AED000 AED000 % AED000 AED000

All investments —

(Dubai Financial Market
and Abu Dhabi Stock

Market) 10 41,726 363 10 37,612 386

22C Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human etror, fraud or external events. When
controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory
implications, or lead to financial loss. The Group cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but
through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential tisks, the Group is able to
manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access, authotisation and reconciliation
procedures, staff education and assessment processes.

23 CONTINGENCIES
Contingent liabilities
At 31 December 2023 the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of bank and other guarantees and

other matters arising in the ordinary course of business from which it is anticipated that no material liabilities
will atise, amounting to AED 10,105 thousand (2022: AED 10,105 thousand).

Legal claims

The Group, in common with the significant majority of insurets, is subject to litigation in the notrmal course
of its business. The Group, based on independent legal advice, does not believe that the outcome of these
court cases will have a material impact on the Group’s income or financial condition.
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23 CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Capital and lease commitments

At 31 December, the Group’s capital and short-term lease commitments are payable as follows:

2023 2022
AED’000 AED’000
Short-term lease commitments - less than one year 206 198

24 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Compatative figures have been reclassified in order to conform to current petiod’s presentation and
improve the quality of information presented. However, thete is no effect on previously teported total
assets, total equity, total liabilities and profit for the year.

Summary of Solvency Margin Analysis

2023 2022

Unaudited Audited

AED’000 AED’000

Minimum Capital Requitement (MCR) 100,000 100,000
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) 320,741 252,732
Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGF) 208,356 108,237
Basic Own Funds 582,733 454,184
MCR Solvency Margin - Surplus 482,733 354,184
SCR Solvency Margin - Surplus 255,992 201,452
MGF Solvency Matgin - Surplus 374,377 345,947
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